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"Carry into the new year only the choicest thoughts and inspirations.  
Welcome and all hail to the future!"   

~ Newell Dwight Hillis

Newsletter
Avon Preservation  

& Historical Society 

Happy Bicentennial Year
for Avon!

2008 Annual Meeting - Will be held at the Village 
Hall on Sunday, January 27th. Social Reception at 1:30pm, 
French's Speech at 2:00pm and Business Meeting at 3:30pm. 
Agenda includes a review of the new bylaws, the renting of 
temporary headquarters for the Museum and to meet the 
new nominees for the AP&HS Board. As a special treat we 
will hear Robert French's personal experiences from Tanzania, 
Africa. Our own "Mr. Website" has been just about everywhere 
and knows how to get the most out of an exotic location.  
All are welcome!

Sleigh scene on West 
Main Street Hill? Back 
of the Livingston Hotel?  

Man in sleigh? 

Help identify for a prize!

Bicentennial Committee Meeting - 
Tuesday, January 22nd, 7:15pm, Community 
Room of the Avon Memorial Library - The first 
meeting is for ideas and thoughts on how to 
involve the town for this special anniversary. 
Call 226-9424 for more information.



A World Famous Composer,  
a Photographer and an Avon Priest

Many Avonites 
still recall Father 
Henry Atwell, the 
charismatic priest 
f rom St .  Agnes 
Parish. His slight 
p h y s i c a l  s i z e 
downplayed the 
enormous spir i t 
that one sensed 
upon meeting him. 
Demond Stone , 
long-time Rochester 
reporter, wrote that 
"The Rev. Henry A. 
Atwell was one of 
those people you 
would want to live 
for a long time." 
But Atwell, in the 
prime of his life, 
learned that he had 

an incurable heart disease and accepted it by saying "my bags 
are packed."

Father Atwell died quietly on March 24, 1980. Among his 
many credits, besides being a good priest, was a successful 
editorship of the Catholic Courier Journal (western New York 
state's major Catholic newspaper), being the first president 
of GEM (Genesee Ecumenical Ministry) and aiding in the 
establishment of the Senior Citizen Nutrition Program in 
Livingston County. Father Atwell also established the Parish 
Council for St. Agnes in 1972.

He as not one to refrain from expressing his views. For 
years he was a leader of a group of priests who discussed 
contemporary theology. One of his controversial topics related 
to the "mystery of the 43 missing Catholic men in Avon" (men 
who were often seen in the local pubs on Saturday night, but 
were always missing from Mass on Sunday). It seems to have 
been a smart compromise to hold Mass on Saturday afternoon. 
Times have changed since the first Catholics in Avon had to 
walk to Scottsville to attend Mass.

A simple service for Father Atwell was held at Avon's 
peaceful Catholic cemetery and was ended with a touch of 
whimsy when his friend, Louis Ouzer, blew soap bubbles 
over his friend's grave. Father Atwell is buried in St. Agnes 
Cemetery next to his mother, who also died in 1980. In his 
honor. Avon's Interfaith Council, Inc. began a Memorial of 
Human Unity - an annual symposium on human unity to 
be held in the Rochester area under the leadership of Doris 
Ryan Gillard.

Father Atwell, within his chosen profession, wished to 
make the public aware of certain situations that affected the 
humanity in this area. His annual friendship with a well-known 

Jewish photographer, Louis Ouzer, 
and the famous composer, Alec 
Wilder, an agnostic, was formed 
out of their mutual concern for 
this area's morality.

Encouraged by the same 
tolerant environment that had 
nurtured the suffragette and 
Underground Railroad movements 
that made this area famous, they 
were each stuck by the similar 
injustices. Both knew Louis 
Ouzer, the local award-winning 
photographer, who knew a Who's 
Who of New York State personally. Ouzer pushed for Wilder 
to meet Atwell to complete the threesome of these common 
minded men.

Alec Wilder had attended the Eastman School of 
Music where he was strongly supported and influenced by 
Rochester's great Dr. James Sibley Watson, a generous patron 
of the arts and an early pioneer in filmmaking, among many 
other things. Dr. Watson introduced Wilder to the process of 
musical scoring for movies.

Father Atwell never was ambitious for himself within the 
church. All of his searching was made within the framework 
of Church law. He was simply a good man who would not 
remain silent when he saw a problem. Thus, Atwell developed 
a "strained relationship with Bishop Fulton J. Sheen, the 
handsome, charismatic and best-known evangelist within 
the Catholic Church," an international celebrity and quite far 
removed from Atwell's world and those whom he hoped to 
help.

After a Rochester radio station banned the Council of 
Churches for taking part in inviting the controversial Saul 
Alinsky to Rochester, Father Atwell halted his very popular 
Sunday morning address program, until the radio station 
withdrew the ban. Called an able interviewer, Father Atwell 
could often get his guest to reveal much more of their opinions 
than they had wished to be known.

When Sheen sent him to Avon in 1967, it was in a sense 
of being "farmed out" for Atwell's frank editorials in the 
Catholic Courier. Alec Wilder wrote, "Henry is one of the new 
renegade breed as well as being a very bright, warm, witty, 
civilized man. His editorials were so daring and off limits that 
he was removed and shipped off to what I suppose his bishop 
presumed to be the boondocks. It happened to be a lovely little 
village south of Rochester." (p. 143 Desmond Stone Alec Wilder 
in Spite of Himself) Perhaps it was Avon that Wilder had in 
mind when he wrote "It's so Peaceful in the Country."

The following year Alec Wilder, "who was disturbed by 
Atwell's new assignment," decided to bring a little fame to the 
parish of St. Agnes by composing a choral work, "A Children's 

Father Henry A. Atwell

Alec Wilder



Plea for Peace," written especially for the children of St. Agnes 
School. This work came as a direct result from a meeting at the 
1850's Avon Rectory.  Atwell had handed the musician several 
quotes regarding peace from famous men and Wilder thought 
about them and felt he would like to "hear the uncomplicated 
statements of children."

Father Atwell had the St. Agnes children begin writing 
essays about peace. One that particularly touched the men 
was "Peace is a horse with a nose of velvet." It opened in Avon 
on May 3, 1969 and was repeated at the Eastman School of 
Music.

Alec Wilder’s music is a unique blend of traditional 
American jazz and basic classical styles, defying any 
preordained stereotypes. Born in Rochester in 1907, he moved 
to NYC and was encouraged by Frank Sinatra and Mitch Miller, 
himself a graduate of the Eastman School of Music. Wilder 
composed for Sarah Caldwell, Eileen Farrell, Cab Calloway 
and Kenny Burrell, among many others. One of Wilder's most 
famous songs is "I'll Be Around."

Unable to attend Father Atwell's service, Wilder had 
begun to fail in health himself. He died December 1980 in 
Gainesville, FL. According to his wishes, has was buried in  
St. Agnes Cemetery, as close as he could get to his dear friend, 
Henry Atwell. He is undoubtedly the most famous burial in 
Avon (outside of Avon). (All quotes from Desmond Stone's 
Alec Wilder in Spite of Himself.)

Additional Grant Given  
to Help Restore the 

Opera House!

$500,000 became available for Avon earlier this month 
and an additional $750,000 is pending through a Save 
America's Treasurers grant from the National Park Service. 
Bero Architecture is currently working on designs for the 
renovation with Larsen Engineering suggestions on how to 
make use of "green technology."

Almost a Landmark
It is a structure that became near and 

dear to all of Avon's children and the young 
at heart. Completely modern when it was 
built, you weren't encouraged to stay for 
hours like at "Woody's," but on a hot day, 
nothing beat Annis Dairy ice cream! The 
line formed all down the counter and out the 
door. I remember being delighted at being 
told by Mr. Annis, when I started working 
there, to be sure to try all the varieties of ice 
cream. I did!

Past News Events
*The Avon News began publishing about 100 years ago, 

established by Howard R. Gibson.

What Made the Journal kept by Will Leighton

Jan. 11 The trolley wires are strung from Avon to 
Rochester.

 16 The first new trolley for the Erie (Railroad) arrived 
today.

 22 The new trolley made her first trip to Rochester 
and back.

 23 10 (degrees) below zero.

Feb. 5 They commenced Ice Harvest today - Wadsworth 
Pond.

 6 H. Jos. Clark died this AM and his mother died 
last midnight.

 7  From 50-60 teams at Wadsworth Pond harvesting 
ice.

 11 9th annual Banquet of Chem. Co. Congressman-
elect Peter Porter was guest.

 17 Bill Clark and gang sank 1,300 feet of 12" iron pipe 
in the lake for the Avon Water Works, but was 
broken apart in 2 places in the process.

 19 The men came to do the vault work in the new 
bank today.

 22 The water system is out of order today. Flora 
Albert fell from the baggage car at Mt. Morris 
and was injured so badly that he died (just after 
returning to Avon to see his wife who had been 
called down to the depot.)

 23 John. L. Westfall was nominated for collector at 
Republican Town Caucus.

 25 The vault was completed today.

Mar. 4 Harry Lacy was run over by the Van Zandt Hose 
cart at a fire at the High School and was cut about 
the face.

 17 William Archibald has a new house.

 19 The (Champion) Drill Works caught fire and 
burned down by 11:30pm.

Annis Dairy (Dec. 2007) Photo by Carolyn Swanton.
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Veteran to be Remembered 
John Alexander

On the way to Caledonia one passes one of the earliest 
recorded crime scenes in western New York. The equivalent 
of our CSI investigators had a case to figure out when they 
arrived at Sylvester Hosmer's Tavern in 1814 on Route 20. 
Mrs. Hosmer had heard a shot early in the morning and sent 
her husband out to check on it. He found a soldier with no 
identification on him. As it turned out, one soldier had killed 
another, over the pay they had received that day. For awhile, 
they did not know who had been the killer and who had been 
the victim, as they both had missed their roll call the next day, 
but they found the big spender and identified him as the man 
AWOL from his unit. They were soldiers in the War of 1812 
and on their way to Sackett's Harbor.

"The soldier’s murder might have soon been forgotten as 
another sordid, melancholy incident of war but for a strange 
happening the next summer. Just as wheat was beginning to 
ripen in the river valley, the settlers noticed a strange flower 
raising its purple head above the soldier's grave. It had a single 
stalk which bore a wax-like blossom, the like of which had 
never been seen before - or since - in the region.

The next year there were two blossoms near the first. For 
nearly one hundred years, the flowers were an annual wonder 
of the countryside. They never spread beyond the area of the 
grave. Then one summer the flowers did not appear. They 
never bloomed again. They had gone as mysteriously as they 
had come." (Arch Merrill, Democrat & Chronicle 7-10-55)

"My brave lad, he sleeps
In his faded coat of blue

In his lonely grave unknown
Lies the heart that  

beats so true."

Photo of John Alexander's monument on the road to Caledonia

Membership
Membership in the AP&HS is still only $5 for an 

Individual/Senior, $10 for Family membership. Know someone 
who has moved away from Avon, but still asks what's going 
on? Know someone who has gone into a nursing home who 
would like to be a supporting member? Have any last minute 
Thank Yous to send? Where else can you remind someone 4 
times a year, you are thinking of them, for the price of a card? 
Call Mary Liz Stanton at 226-3443 to join up or grant someone 
else membership.

We are always looking for new 
members and trustees for the AP&HS.  
It is an exciting time to not just read  
or hear about Avon history, but also  

be a part of it. The future does depend 
upon what is done now.
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Annual Meeting Report
By Jean Batzing 

The AP&HS Annual Meeting was held at the Avon 

Village Hall, Sunday afternoon, January 27. Forty 

two people attended participating in a new format. 

Refreshments were served first at which time they could 

renew Memberships, peruse AP&HS sale items and chat 

with one another. At 2PM Bruce Burritt presented a 

very colorful and interesting “Tanzania Safari.” Bruce 

had been on the Safari with Bob French who was ill and 

could not make the presentation. The business meeting 

was held at 3PM. Agenda included the adoption of the 

Secretary’s Minutes for the 2007 Annual Meeting, the 

2007 President’s Report (see page 5) and the voting in 

of members for the Board of Trustees, term expiring 

12/31/10; Richard Burke, Thomas Ippolito, Mary Liz 

Stanton, John DuBois, J. Michael Rink, and Joan Reid. 

Filling in for one year terms are Mary Ann Margiotta and 

Beverly Dziekonski. The new By-Laws, Treasurer’s Report 

and other information was also available.

New 2008 Officers:
Elected at the February 4, 2008 meeting were Richard 

Burke, President; Robert Westfall, Vice President; 

Treasurer, Lori Gunther and Joan Reid, Secretary.

2008 Programs
By Joan Reid

Free Lecture on March 9th at 2pm at the Avon 

Village Hall. Lenora Brown talking about William Pryor 

Letchworth.

Also… look for Rails to Trails in April.

From the T & C Hardware to the Livingston Hotel: 

Genesee St. Avon c. 1950

PAST NEWS EVENTS

Exactly One Hundred Years Ago -  
What Made the Journal kept by  
Will Leighton In 1908 

April 13 - Henry Chase died this evening.

15 - The Sanitarium was sold at foreclosure sale this 

A.M. Mrs. Allen bid is in. 

May 22 - De Rue Bros. Minstrel Co. is in town.

30 - Some canoeists (sic) found a body in the river  

this afternoon. 

June 16 - Ken McVean left for Alaska.

18 - They are constructing a macadam road between 

Avon and Mt. Morris - Mr. Weed and Frank 

Kellogg went to Rochester and brought back 

Frank’s new Stoddard-Dayton touring car.

20 - They are laying the foundation for a new building 

down at Ishams (J. D. Pasqualie grocery when I 

was young- gone now) (sic). 

25 - Alumni Banquet held in new school.

Correction from last issue; Avon’s Library is the 

Avon Free Library and the editor (of all people) is deeply 

chagrined to having called it incorrectly. (Sorry, Mother)

The AP&HS is as its title indicates -  

to Preserve Avon’s History. 

The Board of Directors would like to hear your 

thoughts and suggestions. You can do this by writing 

Membership Chairman AP&HS,  

27 Genesee St. Avon, NY 14414
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North Avon Railroad Stops 
By Carolyn Swanton 

“Golah”

Before cars were parked in most people’s driveways, 

the popular mode of public transportation was railroad. 

“Autos” were not reliable at first, and trains offered 

comfortable and dependable travel. While that still 

may be true, most people want their own vehicle once 

they have reached their destination. We have grown 

accustomed to our conveniences. At the turn of the 

last century, however, the Erie Railroad provided Avon 

with many stops to accommodate daily traveling to and 

from Rochester. Avon was an important center for the 

railroads.

The first road south of West Rush on the East River 

Road is Golah Road, heading west towards the railroad 

tracks to what was once Stull Family farm lands. It was 

there that Avon’s electrical power source was built. 

From this road south, even though technically in 

Monroe County, property has always been a part of Avon 

Township for telephone and mail services. Schools have 

been a matter of choice.

Several former tenant farms were built on Golah Road, 

but the bustle of train travel has long since subsided and 

the stop was removed. The train track lines run parallel 

to the Genesee River into Avon.

“Meadow-wood”

The next railroad stop coming south along the Erie 

Line was built for an estate of three houses designed 

by Claude Bragdon of Rochester for the Henry Wray Jr. 

Family. It was 

primarily used 

by the servants 

and visitors 

who came out 

from the city, 

and the Wray 

children who 

went to private 

schools in 

Rochester.

The two main houses at Meadow-wood were a part of 

the Avon AFS House Tour in 1977 courtesy of the owners; 

Mr. & Mrs. Vincent Mayoue (main house) and the former 

owners, Mr. & Mrs. Walter Swanton (house on the right). 

Irene Wray Swanton was the great-granddaughter of the 

original owner of the property and is in the photo as a 

little girl in the summer photo of the station, looking 

towards the camera.)“Main Street” West Rush (inset the old Post Office)  

Photos by Delos H. Wray Sr.

The Erie Passenger Station at Meadow-wood in 

Winter (with Mr. & Mrs. William Pitkin (of Chase-Pitkin 

landscaping) and Mr. and Mrs. John Stull and in upper 

right corner - in Summer from left: Ernie Knopf, and 

members of the Wray family. Photos by Delos H. Wray Sr.

“Elm Place”

The Erie’s next stop was the 18th century style 

farmhouse known as Elm Place. “In 1764 William 

Markham, father of Colonel William Markham, early 

settler of Avon, was a member of the party sent by 

General Braddock from Oswego to Irondequoit Bay, then 

overland to Genesee Castle to effect the release of two 

white captives. In 1790 Col. William Markham came 

to Avon and built ‘Elm Place’ on the East River Road.” 

(From the Chronology of “Avon, Heart of the Genesee 

Country” by Marie C. Preston)

Elm Place was named for a very large elm tree. The 

Markham Elm’s branches spread over an entire acre 

of land. “In 1922, a reproduction of the original home 

was constructed on the exact site. The pioneer cabin is 

complete to the last detail.” (p 292 Rochester and Monroe 

County; a History and Guide) The log cabin was one of 

the first structures to be obtained in the formation of The 

Genesee Country Museum.

Living over 100 years, Miss Linda Dana Puffer, a 

graduate of Wellesley, bridged the gap between several 

generations and earned great admiration in this area. 

After college Miss Puffer (her mother was Susan Emma 

Markham) worked with Melvin Dewey, inventor of the 

Dewey Decimal Classification. (11/10/1969 Ruth B. 

Chamberlain “About the Town” Times-Union) She was a 

great patron of the arts working with the Herdle sisters 

to save the Memorial Art Gallery in lean years.
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Besides the large dairy farm they lived on, the family 

also had major positions in various Rochester industries 

including the founding of the Pfaudler Co. which later 

became Sybron Corp. Pfaudler was engaged in many 

activities with their glass-lined steel tanks, one of their 

largest clients being Budweiser beer. The family was also 

active in the support of the arts and Avon and Livingston 

County Historical Society.

After her father, Charles C. Puffer, was lost in the 

Titanic disaster in 1912, she continued running the dairy 

where Markham and Puffer certified milk was produced. 

It was then in operation as a Black Angus Farm after the 

transfer to the Selden Family.

Stopper from an old milk bottle  

from M & P Dairy

Miss Puffer was such a fan of live 

classical music, she tried in vain to 

get Strong Memorial Hospital to 

lend her an ambulance to take her to 

and from the Eastman Theater while she was hospitalized 

for pneumonia. She had promised she would come right 

back, but they didn’t approve. Everyone who knew her 

had a story to tell about her courage and practicality.

On August 19, 1915 Elm Place was the setting for 

the annual meeting of the Livingston County Historical 

society presided over by Mr. Herman W. DeLong of 

Dansville. Those elected to office from Avon at that 

meeting were Miss Jane Brewster, Miss Anne Pierpont, 

Mr. & Mrs. James D. Carson, Mr. & Mrs. Herman A. 

Dooer, Mr. & Mrs. Alexander Russsell, Mr. Frank E. 

Hovey, Mr. & Mrs. James D. Sheldon. The Recording 

Secretary described Elm Place in the annual report as:

“In all the beautiful valley of the Genesee, there is 

no fairer spot, no place so appropriate, as Elm Place, in 

which to bring together an organization of historians. 

While the Livingston County Historical Society are 

collecting and writing the present history of Livingston 

County, yet their purpose is to gather more completely 

the earlier history of the valley-history that is hard 

to obtain, because there were not the numerous 

opportunities of writing it in those history making days, 

as there is today. Perhaps never before in the history of 

the Livingston County Historical Society has a meeting 

been held at a place more closely connected with the 

early history of Livingston County, than that section 

of territory which surrounds Elm Place. It is historical 

ground. Underneath the spreading branches of the 

“Markham Elm” famed in prose and song, the Indian 

chiefs of seven nations of the Iroquois gathered to discuss 

“affairs of state” and as they decided, so the early history 

of the Genesee country went. Rich, indeed, in Indian lore, 

is the country around Elm Place, and one has only to 

turn the pages, back, back, back, to see the influence that 

Elm Place had upon the Western New York civilization 

and history.”  

(1916 Livingston County Historical Society Report)

President’s Annual Report - 
2007 

By Jean Batzing

The Board of Trustees held the January Annual 

Meeting and nine monthly meeting in 2007. A severe 

snowstorm necessitated canceling the February 5th 

Meeting.

The AP&HS actively participated in community events. 

At the 11th Rotary Corn Festival the tent was set up on 

Genesee St. with a new book “Coming Home,” and other 

sale items and artifacts on display. A committee promoted 

a “yes” vote through a variety of advertising media to 

“Save the Opera Block.” Members set up a display at Avon 

Market Days. Following the May 28th Memorial Services 

in the Park, an Open House was held in the AP&HS 

facility in the basement of the present Town Hall. Sixty 

adults and children visited, most unaware of our being 

there. How important visibility is!

Three programs were done during the year: Carolyn 

Swanton gave a talk with slides on Claude Bragdon 
in Livingston County, Stained Glass Windows was a 

lecture/slide presentation by Valerie O’Hara and James 

Bartholomew had a display and talk on Glass Bottles  
in Avon.

Four Newsletters included topics as the Part 

Monument, the White Horse, Memberships and various 

committee activities.

Two other notes of interest: Another file has been 

added to the archives with the coming of Barilla to Avon; 

Trustees were among those attending the Open House 

in October. The AP&HS was also given a house from this 

Elm Place, 

Avon, NY
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venture. Land is needed on which to locate it and this is 

being researched. Most towns in Livingston County have 

their own building from which to operate, giving them 

room to set up vintage displays, etc. This would be in 

addition to the space which will be provided in the Opera 

House when completed.

Avon lost two very prominent women in 2007, both 

having made valuable contributions to the AP&HS. Jean 

Weinrich served on the Board of Trustees specializing 

in accessioning artifacts. Jo Ann Streb created artworks 

from various scenes in Avon and donating them to the 

AP&HS. Their interest and help in the Society will always 

be remembered.

Committee reports for the year are on file and 

available on request. Meetings are held at 7PM the 

first Monday of each month (except July) and are open, 

visitors welcomed.

It was a successful year and I would like to thank all 

members of the Board of Trustees for their interest in 

Avon, the Society and doing things many times above and 

beyond the call of duty.

Bicentennial Reminder 

Avon does not have an emblem or flag with 

personalized representation. From the Five Arch Bridge 

to the White Horse by way of our beautiful Circle Park, 

there are many choices. Either Cornplanter or Handsome 

Lake would also make appropriate symbols for our past. 

It might be something to think about during this special 

year.

“Voices From the Past” - Jean Batzing 

Fifty tapes of Oral History interviews have been made. 

Each individual has made a contribution to Avon through 

giving a history of what it was like to live in Avon during 

their time. Several have died and not only is their story 

interesting but also is now valuable history. The first 

tape was made in 1983. There have been other people 

from the past who added to Avon’s history before taping 

was done; such as Minnie Mehlenbacher, Dr. Timothy 

Hosmer, Sam Harmon, and Marie Preston. Several people 

from the “past” will be included in the 2008 publication 

done by the AP&HS with the Town Historian. Look for 

the booklet this summer.

Memberships continue to exceed 200. Thank you 

from California to New Hampshire and in between. 

How is your money used? The Treasurer has a monthly 

report that includes receipts and expenditures as 

rent, newsletter, postage, purchase of items for sale as 

collectibles and publications.

Moving: Restoration on the Opera Block will begin this 

Spring. The AP&HS has rented space in the basement 

of the former Ernie Wiard building on Genesee St. All 

objects in the Museum have been carefully accounted 

for in the Accession Book, packed and moved along with 

furniture, etc. that can’t be packed.

Cushing’s Gas 

Station on  

West Main Street 

(wonder how much  

to fill up?)  

Photo courtesy of 

Mrs. Vicki Rose.
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The 2009 Avon Corn Festival and the 

AP&HS Tent with School House Display. 

Photos by James Brewer.

2009 Corn Festival Report
By Jean Batzing

The weatherman was most cooperative on Saturday, 

August 8, for the 23rd Annual Rotary Corn Festival. Richard 

Burke, James Brewer and Charles Puls were putting up the 

tent in front of the Central Presbyterian Church at 6 AM.

Displays were soon arranged by Treasurer Joan Reid 

and Membership Chairman Mary Liz Stanton. A table 

included the new book, “Guideposts of the Past”; other 

tables presented House Plaques and collectables. Key chains 

were given away. Photographic displays of the Opera Block 

construction were of interest. The panel of Avon’s rural 

schools attracted many in view of the September 20th 

program. “The One Room Schoolhouse” by John Babbitt. 

Several people signed their names on a poster indicating 

that they had attended a one room school.

In addition to talking with visitors about Avon’s history, 

thirty memberships were renewed or new ones added as 

reported by Mary Liz Stanton.

Displays were repacked and stored at 4 PM until the Avon 

Preservation & Historical Society is open in the renovated 

Opera Block. Watch for the Grand Opening of our museum 

later this year. (Docents will be needed; you may volunteer 

by calling Richard Burke at 226-2650).

A special thanks to all who helped in any way to make 

the AP&HS presentation on the 8th a success!
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“A Haunting We Will Go” 
by Carolyn Swanton

Jim Jerris is getting into the spirit of the season by fixing 

up the former William W. Wadsworth estate at 1211 West 

River Road (www.wadsworthhaunting.com) especially for 

October. The lovely 

grounds of his estate 

that was for so long 

neglected has been 

lovingly restored by 

Jerris. The Federal 

style house is made 

of stucco like many of 

the other Wadsworth 

homes in both Avon 

and Geneseo.

Jim has generously 

been housing the 

unusual Victorian era 

hearse that the AP&HS, 

acquired from the 

Wood Historic Library 

in Canandaigua. As 

it complements the 

décor for the upcoming 

event, Jim was granted 

the use of the hearse as 

long as it was covered 

in bad weather and overnight.

Upon first glance the vehicle looks like something from 

Boot Hill, but it is authentic to this region. Although it is 

in rough shape, the hearse explains the way our ancestors 

must have viewed life and, ultimately death. Our hearse was 

equipped to take both sled runners and wheels depending 

upon the season. These vehicles were heavy and slow 

moving on the way, but return trips without the contents, 

this type of conveyance 

was notoriously light 

and would flip over 

easily if going over a 

tree stump or small 

headstone covered 

with snow.

Every weekend, 

after dark, in October 

there will be hayrides 

and a “haunted” house 

and barns to experience 

at The Haunting. The 

main house has 5,000 

square feet which 

is receiving special 

attention from Jerris 

and his aide, Andrew 

Stuar t  (a  former 

Disney employee). 

Remember, we won’t 

be able to hear you 

scream in Avon. Food 

and refreshments will 

be available with a final 

closing on Halloween 

Night. Look for the 

scarecrows! 

To learn more about 

this event call Cheri 

585-507-1868.

Photo of AP&HS hearse at Jim Jerris’ home by Sydney Dioguardi

Programs

On September 20th, John Babbitt with his wife, Mary, 

presented the interesting program of The One Room 

Schoolhouse with an emphasis on those schoolhouses in 

upstate New York. Front and center was the cobblestone 

school house in Geneseo, a marvelous example because of 

early historical preservation. He was glad to learn of others 

in our township.

Mark your calendar for our next speaker on October 18th. 

Thomas Cook will present “Century of the Park” with an 

emphasis on the CCC. Programs are held at the Avon Village 

Hall at 2:00 PM where there is ample parking on Sundays. 

Tasty refreshments are available as well as displays.

Upcoming newsletter articles for 2010 will include the 

Jolly Farmer, the Silo Barn, and High Acres. If anyone has 

anything to contribute to these stories, please call Carolyn 

at 226-9424 or email cswanton2003@yahoo.com. If you 

would like to write or suggest a topic that would interest 

the membership, we would love to know your opinion.
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Photo of the Livingston House with the Avon 
Central School band playing in Circle Park.  
c. 1961 (incl. the backs of Drew Moran and  

Mark Collins on their bikes). 
Photo by Walter F. Swanton.

Mansard Roofs of Avon 
By Carolyn Swanton

Corner of Spring & Genesee: Wadsworth House

Photo by Jim Brewer

Old postcard of Parkside Manor

The mansard roof was developed by architect Francois 

Mansart (1598-1666) of the Beaux Arts French Renaissance 

style. During the time of our Civil War, Napoleon III was 

rebuilding Paris and the revised style used became referred 

to as the French Second Empire style. The Louvre (1852-

57) was one of the most influential buildings of the Second 

Empire. It was very popular because the new mansard roof 

could be added to existing buildings to instantly make them 

look modern. It was at this time that Avon’s mansard roofs 

were constructed.

A four-sided hipped roof was also considered practical 

because it allowed usable space to be planned for attics. 

This was an ideal style to accommodate more people in 

our early large hotels. “Any house with a mansard roof 

can safely be termed Second Empire regardless of what 

decorative elements may ornament its facade.” p. 23 What 

Style Is It? (National Trust for Historic Preservation) Other 

examples of mansard roofs in Avon include the former St. 

George Hotel, Barb Herman’s grand home (and bed and 

breakfast) at 277 Genesee St.

Dr. Edward Cornelius Perry came to Avon in 1893 as a 

young graduate of Columbia University to fill our town’s 

need for a doctor. Avon has been very blessed to have had 

such fine doctors come to our town to find work. They 

always seem to do so much more than just heal us. Dr. Perry 

soon became an active member of the Republican Party, 

the Fire Board and was a coroner of Livingston County. 

For fifty-two years he was a surgeon for the Erie Railroad. 

He was the first county doctor to have an x-ray machine 

in his office.

He added a third floor to his residence on Park Place in 

the new mansard style to house a hospital which became 

known as Parkside Manor. The small triangle 

of land in front of his house was known as Dr. 

Perry’s Park and would be an appropriate spot 

to someday place a memorial to our town’s 

wonderfully capable doctors. Dr. Perry donated 

the fountain for the Circle Park which was later 

moved to the rear of the Avon Inn.
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Mastodons of the  
Genesee Valley

By Carolyn Swanton

It has long been known that this was the home for many 

mastodons, but it is suddenly so real when you actually hold 

a piece of their remains. They lived freely for over a million 

years on this earth, but have been gone for thousands of 

years. Their demise attributed to the emergence of man.

In 1974 Town Highway Superintendent, William 

McKeown, discovered a “chip off old tusk” as Bob Bickel, 

Democrat & Chronicle reporter, worded it on March 13th. 

McKeown noticed the odd object in the gravel that was 

being hauled away from the Garden Street project off Dutch 

Hollow Road and brought it to Irene Swanton, chair of 

the Avon Environmental Commission. She confirmed his 

suspicion that it was tusk material and thought it was either 

mastodon or mammoth. It was verified to be a mastodon by 

Ward’s Scientific 

research lab.

T h e  b o n e s 

most recently 

found on the 

FarView Gol f 

Course range 

are 11,600 years 

old and are the 

subject of one 

of  the topics 

i n c l u d e d  i n 

“Guideposts of 

the Past”, the 

new book for 

this year.

One Hundred Years Ago
What made the journal kept by Will Leighton, Avon’s 

Postmaster.

October, 1909

7.  Oscar Fuller was buried today

31. Ken McVean returned from Alaska after 5 months

November

7.  Avon Hi  5   Gregsville  0    

Avon Town Team  0    Caledonia  11

10.  Minstrel Show at the Opera House (local talent)

13.  Charles Chase was badly hurt by falling with a 

broken pole about 20 feet.

 Larry Skelly fell from the top of a Railroad car and 

was nearly killed this AM.

21.  LeRoy Hi  17    Avon Hi  0

24.  Mrs. Alva Carpenter died this afternoon, aged 83

25.  Fred Rowe married Maggie Finity today.

December

2.  The J. L. Westfalls have a new son, eight pounds, 

Jack

13.  Miss Rebecca Robb died this afternoon.

18.  A daughter born to Kate and Frank Kellogg at  

8:00 PM

Photo of Irene W. Swanton with William McKeown.

From the Democrat & Chronicle, March 13, 1974.
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We Remember…
The names listed below are Avonites who passed away in 2009. We will miss them and much appreciate 

their time here. Every generation hopes that there will be younger people who step up and fill those vacancies. 

This year is no exception and it is with deep regret if anyone has been left from this list that should have 

been included. Memorials to the AP&HS, can be arranged through Richard Burke, Chairman.

In Memoriam
Frances C. Bailey - longest standing member of the First Presbyterian Church

Wilson J. Davidson - 57 years with the East Avon Fire Dept. and a past president;  

Avon Lions Club member, Avon Springs Masonic Lodge#570 for 49 years.

Berenice Freiburger, Librarian for nineteen years at the Avon Free Library

James Fusco, lifelong resident, local farmer, patron of St. Agnes Church.

Joseph “Jesse” Gelsomino, caring citizen and patron of St Agnes Church

Dr. Christian J. Haller, D.V.M., Avon veterinarian from his residence at 83 E. Main Street from 

the 1950’s to the construction of the hospital on Rochester St. Member of the 4 D’s jazz combo. 

Rotarian Person of the Year.

Williard “Bill” Hess - Avon Pharmacist, Rexall Drug Store, Avon Rotary Club

Louis N. Mairs, US Coast Guard in WWll, regional sales manager for Kraft Foods.

Arthur J. Marschke - age 99, former Avon mayor

Walter Nelson - Veteran, member of Avon VFW

Mrs. Betty J. Neubeck (nee Snyder) - Town of Avon employee and patron of St. Agnes

Mrs. Joyce Parker, first president and co-founder of Avon Lioness

Melissa Rowe - landscape architect, member of AP&HS focusing on our downtown  

restoration project.

Mrs. Marguerite “Peggy” Slaight - Rotarian Person of the Year, church worker and  

Avon Lioness, past president

Mrs. Pearl Sutfin, Honored at the Bicentennial Parade of 2008 as Avon’s Oldest resident,  

died age 104

Wilford T. Trewer - Conductor on the (Conrail) Erie RR and Charter member of the AP&HS, 

Veteran of the Army Air Corp, an inspector of the B-26, the Martin Marauder.

Mrs. Barb Vanderbuilt - Avon Lioness, past president and Board Member for the Avon Free Library 
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“Looking Both Ways”
By Richard Burke

As a proud parent of a 4 year old, I always remind her to 

look both ways when crossing the street.  In my message 

I’m reminded to look both ways, first looking back on 

the year that was, and again looking forward at the great 

opportunities which lie ahead in 2010.  Last year was a 

solid year for the Avon Historical Society.  We began the 

year collaborating with the Chamber of Commerce in a 

tribute to Avon’s agriculture, both current and historic.  A 

well attended reception was held, and much was learned 

and confirmed by those attending.  Our Speaker Programs 

continued to provide an informative treat to any and all.  

Our booth at last year’s Corn Festival once again allowed 

us to inform and educate on Avon’s History, by distributing 

“Guideposts,” a booklet offering a wonderful timeline of 

the seminal events in Avon since the time of the Senecas.  

This is an absolute must for any Avon household (and 

can still be purchased at a criminally low price).  Finally, 

much planning was undertaken to layout the design and 

function of our new Exhibit space.  We can’t technically 

call it a museum (if you see me on the street, ask me and 

I can further explain).

For 2010, the curtain has come up on our new stage, 

in the historic Opera Block.  We look forward to using 

this space to display Avon’s history, and create interactive 

exhibits for schoolchildren to learn and enjoy the fruits of 

our community’s ancestry.  Our Society and its Members are 

eternally grateful to the Avon Town Board.  Their foresight 

and perseverance in making the Opera Block a treasured 

landmark, will endure as a crown jewel situated in the very 

heart of our town, for all to see and marvel.  It is, perhaps, 

the most productive use of public space since Gilbert Berry 

tossed a rope across the Genesee River and opened his 

much needed and admired rope ferry.  As the project was 

first presented, skeptics were plentiful.  With the planned 

renovation now complete (and significantly under budget), 

many taxpayers can see for themselves how their money 

was spent, and they can appreciate the craftsmanship of the 

work performed on this uniquely Avon landmark.

As I’ve said before, we are the documentarians of our 

time, and our obligations are not diminished with the 

passage of time.  We now have a high profile space that 

can exhibit those historic photos, letters, and documents 

from the former Sons and Daughters of Avon.  We need 

you to help us in this endeavor.  Please consider giving or 

lending to us your photos, documents, or other pieces of 

Avon’s history so that it may be properly displayed for all 

to see and enjoy.  If you are so inclined, please contact any 

member of our Society, and we will ensure your treasure 

will receive the utmost care and preservation.  We all have 

items that are far too important to remain in a desk or 

closet.  These precious relics have a story to tell, and we 

now have a glorious stage in which it can be told to an ever 

expanding audience.
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Old Postcard of the Whiting Block

Don’t Forget The  

ANNUAL MEETING 
January 24th

1:30PM  

at the Village Hall

Editorial: What’s in a Name? 
By Carolyn Swanton

One of the most devastating fires in Avon was that of the 

United States Hotel, depicted so vividly in John Lyth’s large 

oil painting displayed at the Avon Bank of Castile located at 

263 East Main St. The hotel was at the southern crest of the 

West Main Street hill, commanding a view for sunsets across 

the flatlands, of the Genesee until 1874 when fire destroyed 

much of downtown wiping out the most vital business spot 

in town. Those who remember the Star Market fire or the 

more recent Hurricane Technologies fire understand the 

feeling of dread to see our downtown in flames.

City fathers must have worried about the future of Avon 

perhaps more then than they might have in today’s world. 

Enter Eugene M. Whiting from Caledonia who undertook 

the bold construction of a large brick (thus more fireproof 

- more expensive) building which quickly replaced the lost 

hub. Eugene’s brother, Charles Foster Whiting (1853 - 1935) 

moved to Avon the next year becoming president of the Avon 

Hook & Ladder and proprietor of the Whiting Building. For 

over a century this majestic edifice has been known as the 

Whiting Block honoring the two brothers who stepped in 

to ensure our town’s future.

Every new owner continues to ensure this future, there 

is no doubt in that, but is it right for a new owner to give 

an old structure another name? Legally perhaps, but has 

anyone else equaled the years and effort that the Whiting 

family put in? Should history remember this Victorian 

structure as our ancestors did, or give it a new name each 

time it transfers hands, as it has in the Gilbert Building, 

D’Angelo Building and now the Schultz Block? Let us know 

what do you think?
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